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PROCEEDINGS

MR. ROBINSON:  Okay.  We are calling the meeting to order.  And after the meeting in March, we decided that we needed a facilitator.  And we'd like to express some appreciation to Diane at DTSC, Diane Fowler, Peter Weiner, and, actually, Simeon‑Cherokee.  And we all got together and brought together a facilitator that will help us with today's meeting.  And that facilitator is Angela Ridgway, who is here somewhere.

MS. RIDGWAY:  I am here.

MR. ROBINSON:  And with that, I will turn the meeting over to Angela, and she'll make the introductions.

MS. RIDGWAY:  I would like to welcome everyone here this evening.  I am not sure if we have a few people who are still coming in.  Since I haven't been here, I am not sure what your group normally looks like.  But welcome everyone who is here.  Before we get started, I'll just give you my background a little bit, and then we'll go through, because I haven't had the entire group yet.  We will do introductions, and then we will go through the agenda.  

My name is Angela Ridgway, and I have been facilitating teams and leading teams for over 15 years.  I used to work at Hewlett Packard as team leader in different areas, so I have had a lot of experience setting up teams, getting teams to work together, facilitating the process they use, and also kind of structuring the work that they do to help them be as successful as possible.  Recently in my career I have been focusing on conflict resolution, so I have been doing some mediation conflict resolution.  I work at the Sacramento Mediation Center where I work with group conflict resolution.  And I ‑‑ even though I don't work there anymore, I still do community communication there and also in Placer County I am an advocate of getting people to talk to each other and coming to mutually agreeable solutions.  

So that is kind of who I am.  So what I would like to do is have everyone in the Group, the Community Advisory Group, introduce themselves.  So I am going to ask you a couple of questions that I would like you to answer, and as you are answering them I am going to write down some of the answers.  So this is going to go good because I have never held a microphone and tried to write at the same time, but we will work it out.  

First, I would like for you to tell me your name and what you would like to be called, because your name cards looks like they have your formal name on them.  Tell me how long you have been part of the Community Advisory Group.  And then the other question that I have for you is I would like for you to think about the group that you are, on the team that you are working with, and from your perspective I would like for you to think of a word that describes this group.  So that word could be a noun, an adjective, an adverb, whatever.  But just think of the word that describes the group, and then we'll do that if you are ready.

MR. ROBINSON:  My name is Joe Robinson, and let's see, how long have I been in the group?  I have been in since inception.  I went to the first meeting November 2004, which replaced the Water Board with DTSC.  I believe the CAG started in June of 2005.  So I have been a member since then.  

I am on a number of committees.  I have written some letters, and I discuss it on a pretty routine basis with some of my neighbors.  In terms of the word I would use to describe the CAG, in both the best sense and the worst sense I would say "democratic."

DR. ESPOSITO:  My name is Michael Esposito.  I like to be called Michael.  I have been associated with the group for about six months and a member of the CAG for about three months.  My area is radiobiology.  And as far as describing the group, I would say two words, "intense" and "competent." 

MS. RIDGWAY:  We'll try to do one word. 

DR. ESPOSITO:  Intensely competent. 

DR. RABOVSKY:  I am Jean Rabovsky.  People call me Jean.  I have been here, like Joe, since the inception, which I think is somewhere around the summer of 2005.  My efforts are basically associated with the Toxics Committee, of which I have been the chairperson.  In terms of the Toxics Committee, the word that I associate with that is "a collective."  

MR. SCHWAB:  I am Dan Schwab.  I have been on the CAG since the beginning of June 2005.  I live in the Richmond Annex, so I am an Annex resident member.  I have been involved with writing the bylaws and on the Training Committee.  And the word I would use to describe this group would be "challenging."

MS. DODGE:  My name is Deborah Dodge.  I have been involved with this issue for a number of years.  I am a relative newcomer to the CAG.  I just joined in the last couple of months, and I actually haven't been here for the last couple of meetings because of a family death.  So in terms of thinking of a word, I really don't have one that comes to mind yet.  I like to be called Deborah.

MR. LINSLEY:  My name is Stephen Linsley.  You can call me Stephen or Steve.  I don't care.  I have been in the group since June of '05.  And, let's see, I guess to describe the group I could say is "active."

MS. DOTSON:  My name is Ethel Dotson.  And I have been involved since the inception.  As a matter of fact, I was the person that got all of the signatures to set up a community advisory group and lived in the Seaport housing project at the site. 

MS. RIDGWAY:  We are also asking from your perspective a word that describes the group, just the CAG.

MS. DOTSON:  I can't answer that right now.

MS. TILLMAN:  Hello.  My name is JoAnn Tillman, Seaport survivor.  I have been on the CAG since Ethel at the inception of the idea.  And we ran with it with the Mayor, Irma Anderson, and her staff.  I would like to use a transactional analysis term called, "I am okay.  You are not okay."  So that's how I see the group.

MS. RIDGWAY:  Okay.

MS. ABBOTT:  My name is Tarnel Abbott.  You can call me Tarnel.  I have been with the CAG since the beginning.  And I have been the secretary for, I don't know, more than a year.  And I would say I think people have already used adequate words on this, you know, "intense, challenging."

MR. KIM:  My name is David Kim.  I am with University of California, Berkeley.  And I have been on the CAG since last October.  And one word describes our group, "diverse." 

MR. DURAN:  My name is Steve Duran.  I've been on the CAG since the beginning.  I am here representing the redevelopment agency as a public agency.  Do I have to have a one‑word description of the CAG?

MS. RIDGWAY:  Yes.

MR. DURAN:  "Interesting." 

MS. RIDGWAY:  Okay.

MS. GRAVES:  My name is Carolyn Graves.  I have been formally on the CAG since December, but I have been attending the meetings since, I believe, they first ‑‑ developers first raised the issue of building on the site, which I believe is sometime in 2001 or 2002, somewhere in there.  For me the word would be "community." 

MAYOR MCLAUGHLIN:  My name is Gayle McLaughlin.  I am the Mayor of Richmond.  I first got involved in this issue before I actually was on the City Council as a result of connecting with community members like Sherry Padgett and learning about the problems here.  And through my service on the City Council as Mayor, I seek to advance this issue in the interests of the community.  And the word that I would place out there for how I would describe this group is "hopeful."

MS. PADGETT:  My name is Sherry Padgett.  I have been involved in this issue since early 2003.  And I have been part of the CAG from the inception.  The word that I would use to describe the CAG is ‑‑ it has dashes in it, so it is all one word.  "Do‑no‑harm." 

MS. RIDGWAY:  Okay.  Great.  Thank you for that, everyone.  We have got some great words here and some good perspectives that people see of the group.  So that is great.  What I would like to do as we go through this process ‑‑ and I will be flip‑charting sporadically through the process ‑‑ but we'll be putting them through on the wall so you can see them.  I am going to ask volunteers to help me with that.  Just one second.  

Okay.  So the agenda for this evening, we have a detailed agenda.  I think you picked them up on your way in.  So I summarized the agenda so that I could fit everything on the flip‑chart.  So basically what we are going to talk about next is a facilitated process because my understanding is that this is different than what you have been doing in these meetings up to now.  So we'll talk a little bit about the facilitative process.  And part of the process will be talking about operating norms and things like that.  After that we will have a presentation or discussion from DTSC legal, then review of CAG rules and responsibilities by Colleen Hecht.  

On your handout the discussion discussed ongoing team ground rules.  I am going to basically pull that into this facilitated process discussion so you know where things are going.  Next will be the Technical Support Committee and the introduction of the technical consultants.  After that the Toxics Committee update, then the Toxics Committee chairperson nomination falls in this category, and then the DTSC status report for site activities.  And that would be Lynn Nakashima. 

And then we'll have time for public comments.  I didn't put them up here, but we'll be following this agenda for that.  And then we will have the committee updates, and then we'll wrap up and see how the meeting went.  Okay.  Any questions so far?  Okay.  So just to ‑‑ how many of you have worked in groups that have brought in a facilitator before?  Have you worked with facilitated groups?  So looks like a lot of you are familiar with that.  So one of the roles of the facilitators or my role here is to help this group, help the team meet their objectives, and to provide a structured process for doing that.  So that is really what I am going to be focusing on this evening is helping the team meet the objectives and move the ‑‑ and move the process along in the meeting.  

And so that will include many things.  So I will be asking questions for clarifications, I will be trying to get people involved, and I will be monitoring time and trying to keep things on track.  So that is my role.  I am a neutral in this meeting, so I am brought in as a person who is not giving input into this process.  And what this does is it allows everyone else to be able to focus on giving input instead of focusing on the process.  

That is my job.  I am going to do my best on that tonight.  Like I said, I am going to be neutral, but I will need your help to keep the process moving along.  So if you see someplace where I haven't caught something or need to move things along, raise your hand and we'll get things going.

MS. DOTSON:  I just wanted, as a part of the record and as a matter of process ‑‑ and there is an issue around environmental justice, and this is Ethel Dotson speaking for the recorder.  In our packets that DTSC gave us they did not include as a part of the packets on their policy and procedures environmental justice.  And I am saying there is an environmental justice here tonight as part of the process and even having a facilitator in the meeting and bypassing the environmental justice part of the regulations.  And I want that as part of the record.  Thank you.

MS. RIDGWAY:  So one of the things I will be doing throughout the evening is as things that come up that are important but not necessarily on the agenda ‑‑ it doesn't mean that they are not important comments ‑‑ is I will capture those on ‑‑ we call it a parking lot.  And so I will be capturing things ‑‑ I may have to put it up here so he can get to it, but capturing those kinds of inputs that we don't want to lose so we have a record of it and it can be seen.  

Okay.  So let me get a parking lot started.  That is a perfect opportunity to start that.  

MR. SCHWAB:  We had two more members join us.  Introductions would be good.

MS. RIDGWAY:  Who joined?  

MR. BLUM:  Eric Blum.  Hi.

MS. RIDGWAY:  What we did, really quickly, is your name, how long you have been in the group, and then a word to describe the group from your perspective, we'll do that real quickly.

MR. BLUM:  I am Eric Blum.  I have been here since the thing started, and I represent the business community.  I run a business in the Seaport Harbor Front Area right next to Seneca.

MS. RIDGWAY:  Did you have a word to represent the group, the CAG?  

MR. BLUM:  "Fabulous."

MR. THOMPSON:  My name is Simms Thompson, and I am in the Neighborhood Council, which is in close proximity to one of the toxic sites.  And I have been with the organization from the beginning.  And I feel that it's a little late for what we are doing.  But I hope we come out in the process in the best interest of the communities involved. 

MS. RIDGWAY:  Did you have a word that would describe the group, from your perspective? 

MR. THOMPSON:  The group is very giving in putting into the process of what we are trying to do.  I hope we achieve that.

MS. RIDGWAY:  Thank you.  We have a parking lot started.  That is one of the processes for this facilitated process.  Like I said, this might be different than what you are used to.  I am going to be flip‑charting.  And the other part of it that is different is the use of ground rules or operating norms.  Any time a group comes together to work on a common purpose, it really helps them achieve their goals if they establish operating norms.  There have been studies that show groups that have operating norms.  The way they decide to work together, they are 30 percent more likely to reach their goals.  So they are more effective and more productive.  

So every meeting that I start, I start with ground rules.  This is how we are going to be operating in the meeting at hand.  So the first thing in terms of ground rules, I call it equal voice, meaning everybody who is part of this group has ‑‑ should have the opportunity to participate.  So some of you may not speak up much in the past.  I encourage you to speak up tonight.  Some of you may talk more than others.  We want to hear your opinions, but we also want to let other people have theirs and give their perspectives and their input on things.  

So one of my jobs tonight is to try to balance that input from everyone, and so there may be times where I try to engage people who have been quiet or try to allow time for other people to speak.  So just so you know, please don't be offended about it.  I am trying to move the process along as we go tonight.  

Okay.  So the next one is equal respect.  So that ‑‑ what that looks like is everyone treating each other with respect.  Like I said, these are ground rules I use at my meeting that I facilitate.  So treating and speaking to others in the group or anyone who is present here tonight as you would want them to speak to you and behave.  

And so what may happen during a meeting is if there is someone who they may not realize that a noun or a word that they use or body language or a look may offend someone, and if it seems that it appears that it is offensive, I may ask you to rephrase or restate your comment in a way that is not offensive to others.  So that is ‑‑ that is the equal respect part of that.

MS. PADGETT:  We have another member who has just joined us, Iris Morris. 

MS. RIDGWAY:  If you can introduce yourself and tell us how long you have been part of the group.  What everybody else did was give a word that would describe the group from your perspective.  I'll come back to you if you want. 

MS. MORRIS:  I can go now.  I am Iris Morris, and I have been with the group since its inception.  And I guess "weird" best describes it. 

MS. RIDGWAY:  We'll get that on the list so you can see everybody else's responses too.  Okay.  The next ground rule that I have is to focus front, and front is, you know, whenever the front of the conversation is that is really where we want to be focused.  What that means and what that looks like is no side conversations, people having a discussion off line while someone else is trying to get their comments across.  Also focus front means talking about the topics at hand, staying on track for what is on the agenda.  And so, as I mentioned before, the comments come up that are important comments, but I am not as familiar with this topic.  So I may ask clarifying questions to understand whether those comments are directly related to the topic at hand.  

Based on that, if they seem to be not directly related, we'll come for them on the parking lot.  Parking lot items get addressed later in the agenda where the topic might come up, or they get put on another meeting agenda or they are addressed off line with individuals working on that together.  Okay?  So that is the process for that.  

The last one that I have is listen.  So I think everyone knows what listen means, but this is relatively listening to what the discussion is and what the comments are that are coming out, listening to understand what the speaker is trying to convey.  So before you jump in and add your comments, let the person finish their comment ‑‑ finish their train of thought, and that helps you understand it better.  If you still don't understand or you want to make a comment, asking clarifying questions, that is perfectly appropriate.  But let people talk and then listen, actively listen to what they are saying versus trying to think about, "What is my response to this."  So that goes a long way in helping to develop understanding between members of a group and members on the same team.  

So this is what I always start with the group that I am facilitating.  Even if it is a group that I am working with long‑term, we start the meetings off by reviewing the ground rules.  So what I would like to ask from these ground rules is that all of you commit by abiding by these rules for the meeting.  Does that sound like a doable thing to do?  So what I would like is if you can abide by these ground rules this evening ‑‑ and we will address these again at the next meeting to see if we can make additions and changes ‑‑ they are not set in stone or forever ‑‑ if you could abide by these this evening I would like to see a show of hands.  

Okay.  So Ethel and JoAnn, can you tell me what you would need to be able to abide by these for the evening, what is missing?   

MS. DOTSON:  I didn't say that I wouldn't, but I just don't want to answer that.  It's not that I don't agree with it. 

MS. RIDGWAY:  Okay.  And you?

MS. TILLMAN:  I think they are important, but it is like the rules are important, but I feel like you put the cart before the horse.  So it is difficult to request something to be instituted, and I am sorry, maybe I missed your introduction because I got here late, you know, but I know that you said you are the facilitator, and I don't know at some other time maybe you could tell me what that involves and how did you become involved in this process, who contacted you, why, how you are being paid and your duration.

MS. RIDGWAY:  So for clarification, I will be facilitating this meeting and the next meeting.  At this point that is the extent that I have been brought on, just to make that clear.  I meant to go over that, and I did forget that part, and there will be ‑‑ my understanding is that there will be a process to select a facilitator ongoing.  And so I don't know who that facilitator will be.  So I am here on a temporary basis for April and May, just coming into work through this ‑‑ work through these meetings while a permanent facilitator can be hired.  

So that question, so I understand what you are saying about the cart before the horse, but I am not asking for these to be institutionalized.  I am asking if just for the next two hours, if you could try to abide by these. 

MS. TILLMAN:  Do I see ‑‑

MS. RIDGWAY:  Do you think you can abide by these in the next two hours?

MS. TILLMAN:  I will do my best.  

MS. RIDGWAY:  So, like I said, these are the things that I ask of all participants in meetings that I am facilitating.  So let's go ahead and put these up on the wall, and then we'll go on to the next part.

Okay?  So those were my suggestions about operating norms, and I would like to open it up to the group to talk about what would be necessary for you to be able to be productive on this team and in this group, the Community Advisory Group.  My ‑‑ if I think about a group like this, a couple of characteristics come to mind.  It might be ‑‑ it's a professional ‑‑ even though you are representing a community, you are coming as a ‑‑ kind of in a professional manner, even though you are not here as part of your jobs necessarily.  And then that you would like to be ‑‑ you know, the group needs to be productive to continue and to make progress.  So I would just kind of like to throw it out there and get some responses of what you think of the words "professional" and "productive."  What does that look like to you?  What characteristics do you think about when you hear those words, and just anybody who raises their hand.   

MR. BLUM:  Sure.  Professionalism means treating everybody with respect and moving the process forward and working towards a common goal.

MR. ROBINSON:  Can we all just chime in? 

MS. RIDGWAY:  Sure.

MS. ABBOTT:  The orange is hard to read. 

MS. RIDGWAY:  Good to know.  I'll put that over here.  I won't use it.  Okay.  Anybody else? 

MR. ROBINSON:  Maintaining focus.

MS. ABBOTT:  Doing the work.

DR. RABOVSKY:  Usually it relates to a person's formal education, and I don't think it is necessary for people to be in a professional class to be productive.  So I don't think one has anything to do with the other.  I think the important thing for this group is to be productive to have the goal and to work towards that goal.  And the other thing when you are talking about professional, what I am hearing from other people is really a behavior and behavior of being respectful.  You don't need formal education to treat people with respect.  And you don't need that kind of education to be a productive worker either.  

MR. SCHWAB:  I would add for productive is to use the agenda and stick with it.

MS. MORRIS:  In the interest of time also.

MS. PADGETT:  Speaking of time, we are running out of time. 

MS. RIDGWAY:  So really quickly, we are running out of time.  So I am going to ‑‑ let's keep this as it is.  I mean, it is not ‑‑ this is ideas from people.  This is people's perspectives from what it means to be ‑‑ to have a professional behavior and to be productive.  Okay.  So this is something that you might think about a little bit more.  

And like I said, in terms of creating operating norms for your group, the Community Advisory Group, that might be something that you want to work together to create a set of norms so that you know what the expectations are of each other going forward and being professional and productive and creating an environment where you all reach your goals.  We'll talk a little bit more about that, so just keep that in mind.  And thank you for keeping me on track.  I appreciate it because we do have a packed agenda tonight, and it will be a challenge to keep us on track.  So thank you.

MR. ROBINSON:  Thank you for the introduction.  The agenda shows the DTSC legal chemical review in the CAG role, and we understand that Colleen Hecht will be here. 

MS. ABBOTT:  We do need to back up.  There is two things that we have skipped over.  The first one is the minutes.

MR. ROBINSON:  Do I hear a motion to approve the minutes?

MS. ABBOTT:  No, you don't.  I have to say something about the minutes.  The minutes of February ‑‑ the draft minutes of February ‑‑ the draft ‑‑ I am sorry.  The draft minutes for the February meeting are not in our packet.  They were sent to the DTSC, and they are not here.  So we will have to hold that over.  And we do have our draft minutes for March.  And I guess I can propose that we adopt them.

MR. BLUM:  Second.

MR. ROBINSON:  Motion seconded.  All in favor say "aye." 

MS. TILLMAN:  I have a question.

MR. ROBINSON:  Discussion? 

MS. TILLMAN:  Discussion or question.  My name is not spelled correctly on the minutes.  So...

MR. ROBINSON:  If you would submit that correct spelling or change it and give it to the recorder, we'll take care of it. 

MS. TILLMAN:  Are we still voting on the minutes? 

MS. ABBOTT:  I would propose ‑‑ is it throughout or on the cover or throughout?

MR. ROBINSON:  We can accept them as amended so with the name correction accept them as amended. 

MS. TILLMAN:  There are some other errors in here.  I would think that we could maybe wait up until next month to approve these errors.  Whitney had some remarks that he wanted to make.  He is not here, and there are some errors in here.

MS. ABBOTT:  We can hold the minutes until next month.  What you need to do is give the recorder your corrections so that she can make the correction.  You can mail them to her, or you can ‑‑ if you have it on your copy you can give them to her.  But I think ‑‑ are you referring to the minutes that you got?  

MS. DOTSON:  For March.

MR. ROBINSON:  I think with our agenda being changed we're going to table the minutes until the next meeting.

MS. ABBOTT:  You also jumped over announcements. 

MS. RIDGWAY:  We'll have announcements.  What announcements do we have?  Tarnel? 

MS. ABBOTT:  I have three different announcements.  One announcement is I would like to apologize to the auditorium staff and regarding the misunderstanding around the room reservation for last month.  We thought we had the reservation; we did not.  Another group had the room, and that is why we are moved to the other room.  And I would like to thank you, Diana ‑‑ Dina and Tony, the recreation staff, for very quickly accommodating us and getting the room set up.  That is one announcement.  The other announcement is that Whitney Dotson, Rick Alcarez, and Pablo Munoz and Aria Ligi are not able to attend tonight.  And they did let us know that.  I would like to say that I don't know ‑‑ I don't want to go into it in a long, drawn‑out fashion, but there has to be a way that members should have minutes ahead of time.  And I am going to leave it at that.  I have another ‑‑ my last announcement ‑‑ I will keep this short, but I am resigning effective immediately as the secretary for the CAG.  I will work with our co‑secretary, Carolyn Graves, to ensure a smooth transition.  With Mr. Duran's permission I will retain the key to the redevelopment office and accompany Ms. Graves and help her when filing of documents needs to be done.  

This is very hard for me.  Shortly after I volunteered as secretary someone on the CAG complained to my boss because they thought that I was doing CAG work during my workday.  And I was warned not to do my volunteer work at work, which, indeed, I have not, not then and not since then.  On March 28th, Ethel Dotson complained to my boss because I wouldn't do volunteer work to her satisfaction at work, at my workplace.  I did print out a set of draft minutes for her at my lunch hour at my own expense, $5.40.  I have the receipt.  I do consider that by complaining to my boss, Ms. Dotson has personally put my job in jeopardy, and I consider this a form of harassment which must cease.  I consider it very unsisterly behavior, and it is no way to treat volunteers.  That is it. 

MS. RIDGWAY:  Ethel, do you have a comment you want to make? 

MS. DOTSON:  I want to respond to that.  I have a note here from Tarnel Abbott.  I did not receive no minutes.  Okay.  In the ‑‑ no draft.  I was here at the auditorium for a funeral, so I went right across the street to see if Ms. Tarnal Abbott had the minutes because I wanted to check and see if something was in the minutes which is not in the minutes or what happened at the March meeting.  

Okay.  I sent a friend, which is here taping the meeting with my camcorder, to see if Ms. Abbott had a copy of the minutes.  Okay.  Ms. Abbott sent this note out, and I want to make it as a part of the record.  "Hi, Ethel.  I am sorry I can't provide you with minutes because I am at work and my printer at home does not work.  I could print a set of minutes on my lunch hour tomorrow," in parenthesis, "Wednesday, but please let me know also which minutes, February or March '07.  Both will be in draft format, Tarnel, 910‑4510."  

I went and I called her.  She returned my phone call, as you remember, Ms. Abbott.  Okay, and you told me what time to come in.  And I did that.  Okay.  Then when I get there, I had the March minutes.  And I didn't have the February minutes.  So vice versa and whatever.  Then she tells me that ‑‑ you told me that I had to pay $5 something for some minutes, and I am saying, well, I don't have no $5 and some cents to pay you.  

Does DTSC have the minutes?  They can make me a copy and mail it to me.  That should be the process for people that don't have computers, to print out the minutes.  I don't know if the draft was sent to everybody else or what.  Okay.  So, yes, I am going to your boss because, No. 1, we should have some draft ‑‑ minutes should be left at the library so that if the public wants to know what is happening with the Advisory Group they can go to that library and get a copy of our minutes.

MS. RIDGWAY:  So what I am hearing is, as you're having your conversation ‑‑ and I will ask you to try to hold your voice down as we go forward with this because we do want to treat each other with respect ‑‑ is that it sounds like there is an issue with the process that is causing some frustration.

MS. DOTSON:  Yes. 

MS. RIDGWAY:  So I would say that process needs to be addressed, and I would ‑‑ I am going to put it up here as an action item that needs to happen.  Is there anyone who can ‑‑

MS. PADGETT:  I would like to put it on the parking lot and move on with the agenda tonight.  We have got plenty to go through. 

MS. RIDGWAY:  So we will put it on the parking lot that the meeting minute distribution process needs to be reworked.  Okay.  Let's move on to the next topic, DTSC, so Coleen?  

MS. HECHT:  Good evening.  My name is Colleen Hecht.  I am a senior staff attorney with the Department of Toxic Substances Control.  Initially, let me thank you for giving me some time on your packed agenda to address you.  Let me briefly state why I am here.  I am here on behalf of our director, Maureen Gorsen, and our chief counsel, Elizabeth Yelland, for a few different purposes.  In the interest of time I'll briefly go over this.  The first is to commend you for your progress, your diligence, your efforts to work productively toward our ultimate goal so that it is a safe, effective, sound clean up of the sites that we are all here to discuss.  

With that in mind I would also like to commend the retention of a facilitator.  I think Angela's presence here in the future, herself or someone else, will go a long way toward a few of the items that I wanted to touch upon.  There has been some questions about the role of the Community Advisory Group, the CAG, and the role of DTSC and its interactions with the CAG.  So I wanted to give you my understanding based on my reading of the conforming statute and what I think is most workable about some issues that apparently have come up in past meetings.  

First of all, the role of the Community Advisory Group apparently has been somewhat debated or discussed in ways where people have different views.  We just wanted to emphasize the advisory nature of the name ‑‑ as a name applies, the Community Advisory Group, and that is I don't want anyone misled to think this valuable work that comes out of this group is somehow binding on the DTSC by virtue of the fact that it comes from the CAG, but I also don't want to give the misimpression that it is not valued or not important.  Nothing could be further from the truth. 

The work the CAG does is extremely important to the Department, and the stances that you take are well considered by the Department, I should note, as are comments from all various segments of the public and all interested parties.  We've shown our commitment to this CAG through the preference of basically three to four paid staff here on a regular basis, and we will continue to support the CAG.  However, I should note that with the hiring of the facilitator and the signing of a memorandum of understanding for administrative support, we see our role changing somewhat, that is, much of the behind‑the‑scenes work that our staff has provided with the limited resources the state agency in this day and age has will be shifting to the administrative consultant, the administrative contractor.  We'll work to affect a very smooth as possible transition with the administrative consultant, but you will be seeing a little bit less of us, I think, in the days or months ahead in terms of the administrative support of the CAG.  

I should note, again, as I touched upon briefly this understanding of the CAG's role is consistent with how we work at all of our sites, essentially, and how the statute is used in an advisory group.  In a similar vein, as I said, DTSC's role is somewhat limited in this venue; that is, you are a self‑directed and autonomous self‑sustaining group.  We don't have, really, much, if any, power or role in this setting other than to support by our presence and our interest in the work that you do.  

I want to also encourage you, as I said, to continue the ability of any work you have done.  We are hoping to see even more reporting out, if you will, that is, you taking the messages, the directions, the actions, the action items from this group back to the various neighborhood groups, business groups, geographic groups that you represent.  That is one of your key roles is to get the word out, if you will, for those who can't be here on an ongoing basis.  

I want to also, on a final note, like to commend you for another item on the agenda here, which is the undertaking of a discussion of amending the bylaws.  This dovetails nicely into what Angela was talking about, making the group even more focussed, productive, professional, engaged, whichever similar adjective you would like to use.  So those remarks having been delivered, I am open to any questions to clear up any lingering understanding of how DTSC sees its interactions with the CAG or anything else I may be able to help you with.  I should preface my taking of any questions with the fact that my role is limited in terms of legal advice and support to our staff, and I have little, if any, technical knowledge about activities going on at the site.  With that in mind I am open to any questions for members of the CAG.

MR. ROBINSON:  Given that the MOA has been signed, is DTSC interested in receiving some of the funds to underwrite administrative activities?  

MS. HECHT:  That would not be anything we would like to pursue.  I would like to see a smooth transition.  I think it is difficult for us to do some of the tasks and the consultant doing others.  I should note that the amount of money this CAG has been offered for administrative and technical and support work is, in my understanding, unprecedented.  It is larger than one would typically see.  We are hoping that is an ample amount of money and the administrative consultant hits the ground running and we would not need to do that level of effort that we were doing previously.  

That being said, if things fall apart or it's just not working and you think we need to intervene, by all means call Diane Fowler, Barbara Cook or Lynn Nakashima if you think there is a role for us because the current arrangement is not working.

MS. DOTSON:  I am concerned about environmental justice and DTSC's process of not going through the environmental justice procedures.  Do you have to follow the federal guidelines for environmental justice? 

MS. HECHT:  I am not sure what guidelines you are referring to.  There are two statutes that the California legislature has passed in the last five or six yeas that the Department, in coordination with CalEPA, works to implement the delivery of its programs.  We have a number representatives that work as liaisons to various communities on the environmental justice concerns.  It is something that we keep in mind at our work in all sites where we think there are environmental justice considerations.  But in terms of some unnamed processes, I am not sure what you would have us do differently under the heading of environmental justice that we are not currently doing.

MS. DOTSON:  Maybe I am not making myself clear to you.  The ‑‑ DTSC, CalEPA, has to abide by the federal guidelines under the environmental justice.

MS. HECHT:  Not to my knowledge.  There is state law that is controlling, SP89, the Senator's previous bill and companion bill, that were enacted by the California legislature that would be controlling in California.  Now, if we receive federal funds to do work at a given site, there is an argument that the environmental justice rules in the federal government would apply.  I am not aware of any on‑the‑ground real difference from guidelines that you think we are failing to meet, that you would have us do something differently on.  I am not sure what the nuts‑and‑bolts problem is that you would like us to address. 

MS. RIDGWAY:  Is this something that you could have a discussion about off line to understand that better?

MS. DOTSON:  I have already addressed it to some folks.  It is being looked into.  

MS. HECHT:  If there is something else you can feel free to reach me.  Area code 916‑324‑5780 is my direct line. 

MS. DOTSON:  324‑5780.  Thank you.

MS. HECHT:  You are welcome. 

MS. TILLMAN:  I have a question.  I had called the Sacramento office because I was trying to find out how to write up a letter of complaint about the operation of the CAG and incidents of racial statements that are made and hearing people say, "We are going to vote her off.  We are going to vote her off the CAG."  So it is like the person that I called I did not get a response from.  So is there an individual that you know of that if I wrote them a letter they would look into these concerns or ‑‑

MS. HECHT:  As I said before, the Department has little if any authority to direct how the CAG directs CAG operations.  It would be up to the chair, the vice chair and the members of the chair to take action under the CAG's bylaws if they think there has been an offense of the bylaws such that the member needs to be removed.  The Department really has no participatory role or authority.  We would be interested to see the CAG work effectively and productively as possible, which is why we are here.  And we would monitor the situation is the most we could advise you, but it is really up to the members.  As I said, this is a self‑directed, essentially self‑appointed group.  We really don't have a role to play in disciplining members, removing members, or anything of that sort. 

MS. TILLMAN:  I am not stating that.  I am just stating ‑‑ maybe I can call you. 

MS. HECHT:  Please do. 

MS. TILLMAN:  And write a letter. 

MS. HECHT:  I would be happy to talk about it. 

MS. DOTSON:  We were given a packet of the site mitigation process, and one sheet on environmental justice, and the rest of it was left out.  We should have gotten ‑‑ because I am not on no computer now.  We should have ‑‑ every CAG member should have gotten the environmental justice section of the state DTSC's ‑‑ 

MS. HECHT:  I will look into that to see which portion is missing and see if we can get copies for the next meeting. 

MS. RIDGWAY:  We'll capture that as an action we are calling.  We have captured the environmental justice as a parking lot item.  And one of the things we need to determine in planning for future meetings is when to address these.  So when does it make sense to have a conversation about environmental justice?  So I will capture the action and ask Coleen to look into the environmental justice part of the DTSC packet.

MS. HECHT:  Thank you all.

MR. ROBINSON:  Thank you.  That is actually too big an item to discuss in a meeting with this time restriction that we have.

MS. HECHT:  As you shape the agenda, I will be happy to come down if you think I could help out.

MR. ROBINSON:  We'll be in contact.  Thank you.  Moving along, I think, Angela, what we want to do is start with the technical support subcommittee update.  Sherry? 

MS. ABBOTT:  Where are we?

MS. PADGETT:  We are at the item that says 7:20, and our actual time is 7:34. 

MS. ABBOTT:  Are we skipping 7:10?

MS. PADGETT:  Yes.  Skipping 7:10 to 7:20, we are going into 7:20 to 7:35.  I'm going to go fast. 

MS. RIDGWAY:  We included that in our discussion at the beginning. 

MS. PADGETT:  The Technical Support Subcommittee contacted seven firms, seven technical firms, after the Memorandum of Agreement was signed.  Out of those seven firms the technical support subcommittee interviewed five.  We reported to the CAG at the last meeting that we were going to do that.  We spent three evenings over in the Shimada Room in the City of Richmond going through those interviews.  And we started around 5:30 or 6:00 at night and went through to 9:00, 9:30, three straight nights.  Out of that came two top firms.  We're really pleased and impressed with the quality of all of the firms.  One was Treadwell & Rollo, and the other was Iris Environmental.  And we came to the conclusion that we wanted to include the risk assessment professional from Iris Environmental as part of the team combined with Treadwell & Rollo.  And that will make an excellent combination.  

We also heard clearly, loudly and clearly, from all of the firms that the 40 hours of background review was not sufficient as outlined in the Memorandum of Agreement.  So we went back to Cherokee and asked for another 250 hours of come‑up‑to‑speed background review.  And that was approved.  You can say it was 120 hours or 250 hours.  It depends on how you measure it.  But, in essence, it was approved.  

What I would like to do is ask Dorinda Shipman, who is the representative from Treadwell & Rollo ‑‑ she is only here for a little time tonight because we are very conscious of our hours now.  We don't want her to spend time here unnecessarily.  So if Dorinda could come up and introduce not only herself but also her firm and just very briefly tell us what she is and what their firm is about, and we can get on with the rest of the agenda.  

MS. SHIPMAN:  Thank you, Sherry.  My name is Dorinda Shipman.  I am a principal and one of the owners with a local firm.  We're headquartered in San Francisco and we have offices in Oakland, Sacramento and just last week a new office in San Jose.  We provide environmental technical engineering and consulting services.  And I believe one of the strong points we brought to this particular project is our work for the past seven years with the City of San Francisco on doing peer review and similar support for Hunters Point Shipyard.  

So we assist the City in looking at work that the developer is doing at the Shipyard to make sure they will be able to implement their reuse plan.  For services we don't have in‑house, for specialists in, say, eco‑risk and contaminant sediment issues we have individuals who specialize in these services.  This is also similar to what we do at Hunters Point.  If we need someone who is an expert in radiological issues, we bring them in for that specific topic and task.  

And, Sherry, I didn't have time to make a copy of the org chart, but I have a copy of our team org chart for anyone interested.  Or if anyone wants a business card I can send or e‑mail you additional information about the team or the firm.  But we are finalizing our contract and we will look forward to kicking off our work in helping you with the technical issues here and the regulatory process and we hope to get started next week.  So I can answer any questions if anyone has any questions. 

MS. PADGETT:  Thank you.

MS. ABBOTT:  Have you ever worked with a CAG?

MS. SHIPMAN:  I haven't worked for a CAG, but we do work with the community at Hunters Point.  We provide ‑‑ we help the City put on workshops for what's called the CAC or the Citizen's Action Committee.  We also help with community workshops, presentations to redevelopment commissioner meetings and things of that nature.  So the community relations and outreach is very important on that project, and it is something that everyone is constantly coming together to work on the issues at hand and understand them.

MS. PADGETT:  Thank you, Dorinda.  As a closing item on the Technical Support Subcommittee, we do, I believe, have a contract that has been hammered out between Treadwell & Rollo, this Community Advisory Group, and Cherokee.  And that contract states that Cherokee will be paying for the technical advisory support in the amount of $12,000 a month after the first 60 days.  In the first 60 days there will be $50,000 spent on background review.   

So I think what I would like to propose is that contract be accepted unless there is ‑‑ I am not really sure we need to vote on it.  The Technical Support Subcommittee has already reviewed it, and we've been given authorization to move forward with it.  I am not sure it needs discussion, but I would like to make the announcement that the contract is ready and we are going to get it signed.

MR. ROBINSON:  That is terrific news.  Do we want to ratify that?

MR. BLUM:  I would certainly offer a vote of confidence. 

MS. PADGETT:  Does someone want to offer a vote of confidence? 

MR. BLUM:  It is not a motion, but everybody who is behind it and thinks it is a good idea, please raise your hand.  I think it is great. 

MS. PADGETT:  Looks like we have a member of the audience, our legal counsel, who has been helping with us that would like to say something.

MR. ROBINSON:  The chair recognizes ‑‑

MS. DOTSON:  But I had my hand up.  You did see that.  I would like to say that I am not voting in favor of this for the very reason that I brought up about environmental justice.  And there should have been a process of environmental justice.  And that has not happened.  So I am not voting for this.  I didn't vote for it in the Committee, and I am not voting for it now because it is a process that we should go through, and I passed that out at the meetings.  And so I want to make it as a part of the record. 

MS. RIDGWAY:  Thank you.  Okay.  

MR. WEINER:  Peter Weiner, the attorney who is trying to help you get this contract done.  I think I would appreciate it if there were a motion to approve it if that is possible to authorize whoever signed it to sign it for the CAG.

MR. ROBINSON:  So moved.

MR. BLUM:  Second.

MR. ROBINSON:  I think we have already had the discussion.  Shall we show a show of hands?  For those in favor raise their hands.  Those opposed?

MS. TILLMAN:  I am abstaining.

MR. ROBINSON:  One abstaining and one "nay" vote. 

MS. RIDGWAY:  So you have all that in the record. 

MS. PADGETT:  Thank you all.  We really appreciate the support, and we are getting started on Monday.

MR. BLUM:  Can I make a comment, please?  And I think that since money is going to begin to flow, we should focus more intensely than perhaps we have in the past to get things done.

MR. ROBINSON:  Moving along, I think we are ‑‑ are we concluded. 

MS. PADGETT:  Yes.

MR. ROBINSON:  I'll speak loudly.  The next item on the agenda is the Toxics Committee update.  And that is Jean. 

DR. RABOVSKY:  First I want to start with the mission statement, something to keep everybody on track on what we are trying to do here.  Our purpose is to ensure that the interests of the entire community are included in plans for the proper and comprehensive clean‑up and ongoing monitoring of polluted sites in the Richmond Southeast shoreline area.  The CAG's job is to involve all stakeholders in a public inclusive process leading to a clean‑up of polluted sites in the area.  

In the packet there are a number of items.  Two of those items are from the Toxics Committee.  One of them is the set of final minutes from the 15th of February, 2007.  The second is a letter to DTSC.  It is our response to comments to the remedial investigation report on Lot 3, I want to announce that our next meeting is the 17th of May.  It will be in the Shimada Room at Richmond City Hall.  I have a number of topics I would like to cover.  I would ask if there are any questions or comments on any of these topics, including from members of the CAG or the Toxics Committee, that you wait until the end of this little presentation so we can move it along quickly.  

The topics are outreach, worker protection, Technical Support Subcommittee feasibility study, remedial investigation report, Lot 3, radionuclides, and an announcement.  Outreach:  In response to a request during the March CAG meeting that a non‑Toxics Committee CAG member attempt to contact the California Geographical Society, Aria Ligi volunteered her time at the meeting.  The Toxics Committee thanks Aria for her support.  A response was received from the Union that concerned ‑‑ a response was received ‑‑ actually was sent to the Union of concerned Scientists ‑‑ I am sorry that was ‑‑ I am falling over my words here.  I want to add an addendum to that particular issue that I just talked about, the California Geographical Society.  Aria did send a request for help or that they would show their interest.  I just learned a couple of days ago as I was preparing this that she did receive a response from the California Geographical Society, and although they do not, as an organization, have the financials or the money or the personnel to work on this type of project, they are submitting her letter to people on the California Geographical Society who may be interested.  

That is, I mean, I am only aware of this within the past few days.  Perhaps we will be hearing more in the future.  And I would like to thank you, Aria.  For her time and her effort.  A response was received from the Union of Concerned Scientists, from the Toxics Committee communication, in which we described our work and suggested that the Union of Concerned Scientists might be interested in learning more.  This has been ongoing for a few months.  We were informed that the UCS did not have the resources to apply to a toxic contamination or pollution program.  That is not part of the programs now currently in effect within their organization.  

However, the response also mentioned that the organization does follow issues of nuclear reactor waste.  Michael Esposito of the Toxics Committee, who has been instrumental in alerting the CAG to issues of radionuclide contamination is considering communicating with the Union of Concerned Scientists on the issue.  And, again, we thank you, DR. ESPOSITO, for your efforts, and perhaps along the road we may be getting more information in this regard.  

Worker production:  On two occasions the Toxics Committee requested that the CAG formulate a statement for the protection of Richmond Southeast Shoreline Area site worker health and safety.  To the best of our knowledge, such a statement has not been developed.  We reiterate the need for an understanding that workers and their supervisors at the Richmond Southeast Shoreline Area need to be informed about potential occupational exposures and the need for protection.  

Technical Support Subcommittee:  After the Memorandum of Agreement was signed, the Technical Support Subcommittee contacted interested firms for interviews.  Interviewees received an information packet from the Toxics Committee, and interviews have been completed.  You just heard one group was already brought on board.  I am going to leave it there.  If Sherry wants to add anything after we go through this, she can.  But essentially everything I have written here is essentially what Sherry just pointed out on the Technical Support Subcommittee.  

Feasibility Study:  Monitoring the DTSC website and reading the Zeneca responsible parties' proposed activities schedule led to the realization that another report had commenced before site characterization is complete.  This is an issue that we discuss at every meeting, so it is ongoing.  Last month we reported our concern about the commencement of the risk assessment before serious issues relating to site characterization are complete.  

In the 15 March 2007 proposed schedule written by EKI for the responsible parties, we find they have commenced the feasibility study as well.  Sherry Padgett, if she wishes, may present additional details after the end of this report.  It is really up to her.  But this is an ongoing problem for an ongoing issue we bring up every month.  

Remedial Investigation Report on Lot 3:  Members of the Toxics Committee reviewed and responded to the draft final remedial investigation report on Lot 3.  A letter was mailed to DTSC, CAG members, and a recipient list that included public employees and elected officials.  Copies of this letter should be available on the distribution table.  Briefly, the reviewers concluded that the report on Lot 3 is inadequate.  Exposure analysis and toxicological analysis are incomplete.  

Although we recognize that DTSC considers risk assessment issues to be irrelevant to this part of the process and therefore to the review of this report, the Toxics Committee disagrees.  We discussed the disagreement at the March CAG meeting.  Briefly, the process requires that the information we provided in the Current Conditions Report and the Remedial Investigation Report serve as a foundation for an assessment of human and ecological health.  

If that foundation is faulty, the health assessment will also be faulty.  We therefore continued, as we did for the review of the draft final remediation investigation report on Lots 1 and 2, to review and respond to risk assessment issues.  

Radionuclides:  Radionuclide analyses continues to be incomplete.  The data for Lot 3 are the same as that presented for Lots 1 and 2.  The data for Uranium 238 are those rejected by DTSC in an earlier letter to the responsible party.  Although soil Radium 226 values are five‑fold higher than the background levels at the controlled Booker T. Anderson Park site, and Uranium 238 was observed in groundwater, the process is moving forward without consideration for the implications of these radionuclide levels.  

The difficulties encountered during the measurement of Uranium 238 and purified uranium metal contamination has not been taken into account.  Such difficulties were discussed in detail during the March CAG meeting.  In another part of the country, failure to address this particular issue resulted in legal action.  And so, therefore, this is very important to consider all of this in great detail.  DR. ESPOSITO will discuss these issues in more detail in just a few minutes.  

And, now, finally, an announcement.  It is with regret and sadness that I am announcing my resignation from the Community Advisory Group effective at the end of this meeting.  This was a very difficult decision.  The reasons are personal.  They have nothing to do with what I feel the importance of the CAG is.  I feel they are extremely important.  I have worked with the Toxics Committee for over a year.  It has been an absolutely wonderful experience working with that group.  Everybody works and does whatever they say they are going to do.  When I use the word "collective," I was thinking of the Toxics Committee.  It has been a committee that knows how to work as a collective.  

So I bid you adieu effective at the end of the meeting.  While it may be a surprise to some of the CAG members hearing it now only for the first time, I did announce this to the Toxics Committee members at our meeting last month.  I felt that it was important because since we are all working together on different issues, I think they should know what was going to happen.  And, of course, I also had quite a few tasks that had to be completed before I could finally resign.  

I thank you for all of your patients and, really, good luck.  I don't know that I have any parting words of deep meaning, but I would encourage the Community Advisory Group, as they move forward, on whatever projects you undertake, that you really do become an advocate for people who have been exposed, are undergoing current exposures, or may be undergoing exposures in the future.  They really need to have someone working and speaking on their behalf.  Thank you.  

And now, if Sherry and Michael want to jump in on anything or anyone else, please do.

DR. ESPOSITO:  I see a lot of new faces.  I am Michael Esposito, and I am properly labeled at the front of my desk.  What I would like to do is talk to you about two specific aspects of the radiological data that we have been looking at because they are particularly involved with issues of health.  And that has been the focus of our group, trying to underscore our concerns for public health in the future.  

I am going to talk about two pieces of data, first of all, the search for alleged buried steel barrels containing Plutonium 239 waste at the Richmond Bulb site.  And, secondly, issues regarding the detection of purified uranium metal not naturally occurring, radioactive material, not Uranium 238 in soil but purified radioactive metal, weapons grade.  

First let's talk about the buried barrels.  This has been a subject of this committee on at least four occasions since I have been associated with it.  Recently at the Richmond Field Station DTSC uncovered a ferrous metal deposit by magnetometer survey at the Richmond Bulb of the dimension that could accommodate the numerous barrels that a CAG member stated he had buried at the site and thought ‑‑ and was told that might contain Plutonium 239 waste.  

Now, we have been discussing the issue of the possibility of Plutonium-239 waste in barrels for at least six months.  That word, "Plutonium-239," has yet to appear in any document that I have seen from DTSC or from any responsible party.  In fact, when we read the recent report of current conditions at the site, we see no mention of Plutonium 239.  Let me say something about burying barrels.  

Before 1970 it was not unusual for research institutes such as national labs, and the Atomic Energy Commission laboratories to bury alpha particle‑contaminated waste material in steel barrels on site.  The reason for that is an alpha particle, though it is high energy and very toxic, cannot even pass through a sheet of paper.  Of course, when it gets into your cells it wreaks havoc.  But it  doesn't pass through the walls of a steel barrel.  

There were about 300,000 steel barrels distributed around the country according to the Department of Energy, and we don't know the location of many of them because individual laboratories took it upon themselves to dispose of their material at will.  The barrels are hard to find.  Why?  Because the alpha particle and gamma radiation doesn't come up through the ground.  So you need some way to survey for them.  The magnetometer survey has uncovered ferrous metal.  How do we deal with such barrels?  

Here, in a photo from the Lawrence Berkeley Laboratory files from 1968 at the Hazardous Waste Disposal Station, we see a worker with an instrument which is an radiation  monitor.  It has a wand.  And he is surveying the surface of this, actually, steel barrel, galvanized tin barrel for radiation.  You notice he is not wearing any protective garb.  And the reason for that is alpha-particles can't travel further than the length of his wand.  

But the people who are going to load those crates are wearing protective garb.  And in the background of the upper left are 55‑gallon barrel steel drums which are the recipients of alpha particle contaminated waste.  Now, do we know whether these barrels, rather this iron deposit,at the Bulb  is the steel barrels?  No.  Not yet.  But the Richmond Field Station personnel and their rad lab did walk the area with a radiation monitor and found no evidence of radioactivity.  

The hazard is not at the ground surface, if there is one.  Moreover, if there were a leaf covering an atom of Plutonium 239, your detector wouldn't pick it up.  Those detectors are meant to do exactly this, to find contamination right at the surface of the container, a laboratory, a floor, a window, your notebook.  They are not environmental instruments.  It will be very important to remember the possibility that there may be Plutonium-239 buried a t the Bulb because in the future somebody who is doing some excavation for a foundation may run into that material.  

Worker protection:  Moreover, there may be some need to note that you don't want to dig in this area.  So we have to understand that the instrumentation that is used in laboratories such as the ones that I worked in, when you spilled something, they are not appropriate for scanning the underground environment.  To see whether or not those barrels contain alpha particle material require very careful protocol.  You can't go out there with a backhoe.  

So what is the hazard?  The hazard is underground release of material from these rusty barrels into the ground and into the ground water.  And we need to say the unmentionable.  Plutonium 239, if you don't know it is there, is easy to confuse with a naturally‑occurring radioactive item which is in all of our environments, radon.  Radon.  Radon and Plutonium 239 have similar alpha-particle spectra.  What is an acceptable level of radon is not an acceptable level of Plutonium 239.  

Now let's move on to the uranium.  We discovered when we were looking at the information for Lot No. 3, that highly purified uranium metal was melted, cast, rolled, drilled, under auspices of the subcontract of the then Atomic Energy Commission at Lot 3.  We already discussed that one needs different methods of analysis to find contaminant uranium metal.  And, in point of fact, none of the methods that have been used to date would have detected any of it.  And we just want to remember the buildings in which the work was done were actually ground into powder and used as part of the landfill for the site.  This work necessarily involved contaminated melting ovens, crucibles in which the metal was melted , machine tools, hand tools, vaporized hazardous material on protective gear.  Where is it?  Where did that all go?  We are provided with absolutely no information.  

And there is another ferrous field, magnetometer‑positive field of scattered bits.  And I hope those are not the hand tools and the other material.  This material is a potential health hazard.  During the period of demolition of the buildings at the site including this uranium melting operation, three members of our community developed symptoms of chondrosarcoma.  This is a cancer which has a frequency in the general population of between one in a million and one in 10 million.  And within the space of just several months we had three cases.  

A few years ago and 3,000 miles away at (Hicksville Long Island, a worker who had been hired to drive trucks at a site that had been previously known to be contaminated with radioactive material developed chondrosarcoma.  What does the Richmond site, which is very complex, have in common with this very simple site?  The melting and vaporizing and burning of highly purified uranium metal.  So in terms of worker safety, if you are out in the field at the Zeneca/Stauffer site, no one knows where the uranium metal dust is.  

I think that the comparison of these two environments leads us to another issue.  Many members of this community have reported anecdotes of illness in their families,and illness of neighbors.  This has to be codified at some point because these kinds of comparisons of sites and the diseases that people have reported is the basis of a beginning field of medical epidemiology associated with remediation and pollution.  So I think the lesson is that not only do we need to be monitoring our own activities and our own site, but I think we should be knowledgeable of others because what we learn here and what they learn there is going to benefit us all.  Thank you. 

MS. DOTSON:  I was told by Anna Moore that there was a dry pond over at the UC Berkeley site.  I asked her what was it used for, and she said that they put sewage into the pond, and they would put radioactive material in there.  So to you, does that mean that ‑‑ you say where did it go to.  So that means that it is all in the sewer line.  And could that be why a lot of ‑‑ if they put it in the sewer line, how far did that go over the City?  Could it have went also across over by the Booker T. Anderson area since this radioactive material and stuff was over there?  So ‑‑

DR. ESPOSITO:  Ethel, what you are referring to is the second project that was run by the Richmond Field Station.  And what it had to do with was the introduction of radioactive tracers into a sewage pond to monitor the way in which the sewage was being decomposed.  So, yes,  there were radioactive tracers introduced.  The flow, I think, of that material and the relationship between sewer lines and storm sewers, and especially the movement of water during flood times, is a really important issue for us all to examine.  And I remember Simms Thompson describing the way in which the water moves in unexpected directions in the area we are studying.  And I think Carolyn Graves and Tarnel were trying to investigate shorelines old and new to look at the communication. 

MS. ABBOTT:  DR. ESPOSITO has, I believe, in the past advised the DTSC that they should be using a different form of testing to locate radioactive contaminated barrels.  It appears that it is UC Field Station that is having these tests conducted.  And, you know, I just think that maybe ‑‑ I don't know if there is a representative here from the Field Station, but this may be a specific item about the type of testing and the proper equipment and the proper test, that maybe that should be done as a letter. 

MS. RIDGWAY:  One of the things I want to make sure we do is I know we have transcription, but in terms of these actions that come up, do we need to capture them?  And you will have to help me with some of this because it is very technical.  So I don't have the background for that. 

DR. ESPOSITO:  I have already given the transcriptionist a script of my comments so that she could capture the technical verbiage of the various isotopes which even I can't keep track of when someone else is speaking. 

MS. RIDGWAY:  But then it turns to the issue of the sewage for the UC station.

DR. ESPOSITO:  I think that will be a part of the response of the Toxics Committee to the current conditions report for the Richmond Field Station which we have just started to work on.

MS. RIDGWAY:  So you have all that captured.  Is that correct? 

DR. ESPOSITO:  Correct.

MS. RIDGWAY:  I know there is a lot that comes up.  I don't want to miss any of it.  Okay.  Thank you. 

MS. PADGETT:  I know we're over on time, so I will go real fast.  With regard to Tarnel's last question about the different sampling methods, the California Department of Health Services radiological health branch has been meeting with the Department of Toxics Substances Control to determine the type of sampling methods and analysis that needs to be done.  We are hoping that all three sites ‑‑ and the three sites would be the Harbor Front Tract, which has already been sampled, and they are going to be doing more sampling, the Zeneca/Stauffer Cherokee Simeon site and the Richmond Field Station.  What we are hoping for is a standard across all three areas for the type of sampling methodology and the type of ‑‑ and the analysis that comes out of all three, regardless of what it is they are looking for.

MS. ABBOTT:  For clarification, I wasn't referring to sampling; although I am sure that needs to be done too.  But there is another method for searching for the barrels other than the magnetometer which is more specific.  I don't remember what it is.  I never remember what it is called. 

DR. ESPOSITO:  One concern is that not all of these barrels were made of steel.  Some were made of fiberglass.  So you could miss them.  So the ground penetrating radar is another way of finding the barrel material.  You can detect the mass of the material.

MS. PADGETT:  Some of that has to do with methodology of which I am speaking.  To address just a few comments that Jean made with regard to what we are calling kind of ‑‑ not kind of, it is a fast‑tracking of the reports that are coming out of Cherokee.  And they are being written by Levine Fricke, LFR, on behalf of the responsible parties at one of our larger sites.  And responsible parties there are Zeneca, Bearcraft Science, and Cherokee/Simeon.  

To go back and remind everyone, DTSC issued two orders, one on February 8th of 2005 and another on September 15th of 2006.  And the base of those orders, the very foundation of them, is to ensure that we have site characterization of everything that is out there to characterize the site fully.  The site characterization is documented in the form of two reports, current conditions and remedial investigation.  Those two report drafts have been issued for the Zeneca site.  We just received the current conditions draft for the UC Richmond Field Station site.  

I want to stay focused here for a minute on the Zeneca site.  The current conditions report was never finalized by DTSC.  Both the Toxics Committee and DTSC had a whole series of comments about data gaps and other issues relating to the site that really needed focus.  And we needed to get some resolution.  Before those were resolved the remedial investigation report was issued, and DTSC had told the responsible parties that they could address a lot of the issues that were brought up in the current conditions report in the remedial investigation report.  It is a kind of a blending in of response.  

So we ‑‑ we were having to tackle and figure out and try to pull apart the remedial investigation report to figure out where all of the issues that we had with the current conditions were addressed in the remedial investigation report.  And we are finding not everything is addressed.  And in addition, the remedial investigation report has brought up a whole series of other issues.  And some of the side projects that are going on, like the pilot study and the title survey and the magnetometer survey and some other things that are all documented in the remedial investigation report bring up many other questions.  

Now all of that is going on, and there is much more.  I am trying to be very brief here.  The risk assessment was kicked off by the responsible party for the Zeneca/Simeon site on January 15th, 2007.  The risk assessment uses as its foundation the current conditions report and the remedial investigation report which are not complete yet and have not been finalized.  And right behind that the risk assessment is used as the foundation for the feasibility study.  The feasibility study was kicked off on March 15th.  

So we have ‑‑ if you can imagine, instead of a sequencing of reports, we have concurrent reports.  So reports were started and they were not finished, and other reports are beginning before the others are finished of which they are a foundation.  I know I am trying to go really fast here, but I really want to drive this home.  

Now to look out for the responsible party ‑‑ not look out for ‑‑ the responsible party does have a need to start on the database and to start to accumulate the information that they will need to put together the risk assessment and the feasibility study.  So they do need to start at some point to get all of the data together.  The concern is that if they are putting those databases together and that data is being accumulated, we want some way of ensuring that if the risk assessment was started on January 15th, that all of the issues that we still have with both the current conditions and the remedial investigation are included in the data that they are already starting to accumulate for the feasibility study and the risk assessment.  

I know I really got short on time.  So I'll close there.  I had some other comments, but I think that in the interest of time I will finish up. 

MR. BLUM:  Can I ask a question?  In order to accomplish something beyond talking about it and making everybody aware of it and having it on the record, does it make sense, then, to perhaps request of DTSC that these reports not have the normal name that the report would have?  A report coming out later, a current conditions report, would be a conditional or some other adjective that tells us that this is not a complete report and that it is being developed based on information which is incomplete.  Is that a request that we can do or does it say that already?

MS. PADGETT:  It says "draft" already.  The report does say "draft," and it has not been finalized.  

MR. BLUM:  And all the subsequent reports?  

MS. PADGETT:  All the subsequent reports also say "draft." 

DR. RABOVSKY:  I would like to respond to that.  Everybody has suggestions how it can be moved forward in an appropriate manner, but I think that any report that comes out there is always a draft report.  There is nothing unusual about that, but I think it should be done right.  If you are going to do something, do it right.  Now attaching different kinds of titles to the report, my personal opinion is the responsible party or the Department or whoever is responsible for the report to be finalized in order for the next stage to occur, all of that work should be done right, right the first time or the second or third time, but do it right.  

MS. RIDGWAY:  Any more comments or questions? 

DR. ESPOSITO:  I think it would be very helpful for us to have a conversation with DTSC about this issue to inquire whether they have a concern, what their procedure is.  We are left sometimes with the concern that DTSC doesn't have the concerns that we do about this ordinary process.  And we have no way of, frankly, getting an answer.  I mean, how do they view this?  What are their concerns?  I can understand why an institution may want to go ahead and have a draft outline, which they should keep in‑house rather than publish.  I mean, CSV and the other responsible parties, they could make notes all the time.  But, really, what does DTSC expect?  What do they think is the appropriate way to proceed?  Are we the only people with the concern? 

MS. RIDGWAY:  So is there a way ‑‑ can you follow up on that?

MS. PADGETT:  In the Toxics Committee we will.

MS. RIDGWAY:  Thank you.

MR. ROBINSON:  This is closing out the Toxics Committee update.  And with Jean's resignation, we are going to be looking for a motion to appoint a new chairperson for the Tox Comm.  But before we entertain that motion I want to take a moment here and honor Jean and her work.  I didn't want to interrupt the proceedings at the conclusion of her talk, but I think Jean's work speaks to and underscores the issue of environmental justice that's been brought up in the meeting a couple of times.  

The CAG has prepared a statement of appreciation for you, and it is very simple.  It says "Jean's contributions are the cornerstone of the CAG's work."  It is very simple statement, and it goes with our profound sense of appreciation for your work.  If you would, please, give Jean a round of applause for her work. 

DR. RABOVSKY:  Thank you very much.  Wow.

MR. ROBINSON:  Thank you, Jean.  This is for your refrigerator.

MS. ABBOTT:  Not a magnet.  Thank you very much.  Wow.  It's a very nice card.  I can't read everything right now; otherwise I will be here until 10:30.  But thank you all very much.  I really do appreciate this.  It's been wonderful working with all of you.  Thank you.  I'll put this up.  I am in the process of moving to a new apartment, so I can't have this out for too long, at any rate.

MR. ROBINSON:  Do I hear with that ‑‑ I know we are tight for time.  Do we have a motion?  Sherry, I recognize you. 

MS. PADGETT:  I would like to nominate Dr. Michael Esposito as the next Toxics Committee chairman.

MS. ABBOTT:  I'll second that.

MR. ROBINSON:  There is a second.  Is there any discussion or any other nominations? 

DR. RABOVSKY:  I think he would be very excellent.  I have enjoyed working with him.  So he has my approval.

MR. ROBINSON:  Time for a vote.  All those who vote "aye."  Anyone voting no?  All in favor.  The agenda shows the DTSC status report update, Lynn Nakashima.

MS. NAKASHIMA:  Okay.  The status report for this month for the Zeneca site, do you want me to go through all of the items or just the ones that are added since you got them in the last meeting?  Do you have a preference since we are short on time? 

MS. ABBOTT:  Are there any extra copies of it? 

MS. NAKASHIMA:  There should be some copies. 

MS. RIDGWAY:  You want to know what part to go through?  Joe, can you answer her question about what part? 

MR. ROBINSON:  I am putting that out on the floor.  I can't speak to it.  I haven't even seen the document.  What Lynn is asking is do you want to discuss the whole report. 

MS. NAKASHIMA:  Do you just want me to go through the things added since I sent it out? 

MR. ROBINSON:  What does the floor say?  Do you want to hear the whole report?

MS. ABBOTT:  Yes, the whole thing, if possible.

MR. ROBINSON:  I think we should go ahead and you can eliminate the extraneous stuff that you believe is in the text already if it helps.

MS. NAKASHIMA:  Okay.  We did provide our comments to the responsible party for the Zeneca site at one and two remedial investigation report, and we did incorporate some of the comments that we received from the Toxics Committee.  As a result of that, on the last bullet on the first page, "Additional sampling needs to be conducted," which they started today.  The sampling will include collecting groundwater samples and installing what is known as a piezometer on the UC Richmond Field Station.  And this something that is used to determine which way ground water is flowing because there is some question in the northwest corner of the Zeneca property about which way groundwater is going.  They also will be collecting some samples for dioxin analysis.  

We also reviewed the 2006 annual groundwater monitoring report, and that includes a discussion of the groundwater sampling that was done during January through December of 2006.  The report did include a discussion on the biological active perimeter barrier, but it is also included in Lot 3 Remedial Investigation Report.  So in order to do a more complete review we are deferring our comments on that report to the Lot 3 Remedial Investigation Report.  And we also sent out copies of that report to all of the CAG members.  

We are still ‑‑ we still need to review the draft remedial action work plan for the PCB and the volatile organic compound removal action work plan that was in the northwest corner of Lot 1.  So when we get closer to that we will let you know more.  

The responsible parties also submitted the first annual monitoring report for the marsh, and that report was required as a permit condition for the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, and we are going to be reviewing that as well.  For the next 30 days they are going to be doing ongoing maintenance in the marsh.  Weather permitting, they will be applying a herbicide known as Garlon 3A to an area that is just upland of the marsh area.  

They have what is known as broadleaf weeds that are choking out the plants that they just recently put in.  I did check with California Fish and Game, and they told me that was the most appropriate herbicide to use.  So they will start next week, weather permitting.  It may be too rainy next week.  

We are reviewing the Lot 3 Remedial Investigation Report, and we did get your comments.  And so we will be looking at them and incorporating them as we see fit.  We are also looking at ‑‑ I am still waiting for some review on the upper and lower lagoon site remediation.  So we haven't gotten our comments out on that, but hopefully we will be able to do that in the next 30 days.  

We received the work plan to do some additional sampling on the southeast parcel, and we are still looking at that.  You might have noticed that there are some drums on the Zeneca property, and it contains water that they extract from the monitoring wells before they sample.  So they will be getting rid of them after they do this next round of sampling.  

And the next quarterly ground monitoring will be done in early May for the Harbor Front site.  The environmental consultant, Weiss Associates, is preparing a document that describes how the wells were installed.  And they will be doing some groundwater monitoring in May of the shallow wells that were installed.  We do have our samples on hold, as Sherry said.  We are working with the Department of Health Services radiation branch, and I am still trying to get ahold of them to find out the ‑‑ we will be working with them.  

For the UC Richmond Field Station, like Sherry said, they submitted the current conditions reports, and in the white envelope that was handed out today is a CD containing that report.  And I believe eight hard copies were sent, and Sherry has them and she will be distributing them.  Let's see here.  UC also submitted a draft interim soils management plan, and we provided comment on it and discussed it with UC, and they will be revising this document.  

The soil management plan is a plan that explains how they should go about when they are just going to do normal maintenance work on the facility.  Since it is an operating facility, they need to have a way to repair leaks or if they need to do small projects.  So this document will explain what process they need to go through.  For BioRad Laboratory, the City of Richmond finally let them know an administrative review is needed to construct the treatment system that is associated with the pilot studies.  So the City will ‑‑ and I am not sure if the City already did a notification to the public within 300 feet of the site, and it is a ten‑day appeal period.  

There is no update on Marina Bay.  And for both the Stege Property Pistol Range and Blair Landfill, Union Pacific is working on revising both the draft remedial action workplan and the site investigation report.   

DR. RABOVSKY:  I have two questions regarding the DTSC for the comments for DTSC on the draft remedial investigation report for Lots 1 and 2.  You mentioned that our ‑‑ that the Toxics Committee comments were considered and some were incorporated.  Will the CAG receive that DTSC letter so we can see how our comments were considered?

MS. NAKASHIMA:  Yes.  I think it is already posted on our website.  I can double‑check.  

DR. RABOVSKY:  I think that the whole CAG should be able to receive a copy of that letter.  How long is that letter?  I mean, is it 15 pages, one page?  

MS. NAKASHIMA:  It is pretty long.  

DR. RABOVSKY:  Somehow we should have access to that letter because I think if I was still on the Toxics Committee, I would want to see that letter.  And I have one more question.  You're going to be applying ‑‑ not you, but workers will be applying the pesticide Garlon, which I understand includes (inaudible); is that correct? 

MS. NAKASHIMA:  No.  It is triclopyr.

DR. RABOVSKY:  I am asking you.  You are the one who has reviewed all of this.  

MS. NAKASHIMA:  I don't remember the specific active ingredient. 

DR. RABOVSKY:  I would suggest that if you are going to tell us about a pesticide that is being used that you or DTSC or anybody who comes forward, you can always look up the ingredients of the pesticide.  And I think we should know that.  I think, but I am not sure if there is more than one active ingredient.  I think one of them is (inaudible).  But my question is are the workers, the supervisors, and the people who are going to be in the field, are they made aware of what they are working with and are they being protected?  Are they being adequately protected? 

MS. NAKASHIMA:  The people applying the herbicide are registered to apply the herbicide.  

DR. RABOVSKY:  Is anyone minding the store and taking care of this?  We have been talking about worker safety and health.  

MS. NAKASHIMA:  They're licensed applicators.  So it could be like having Clark Pest Control come to your home.  It would be the same kind of thing.  

DR. RABOVSKY:  That doesn't answer the question.  Who is minding the store?  

MS. NAKASHIMA:  I don't understand your question. 

MS. RIDGWAY:  Are you asking ‑‑

DR. RABOVSKY:  Workers and their supervisors are going to apply an herbicide to a section.  Are they going to be appropriately informed and protected in terms of the clothing that they wear or to ensure it is not going all over the place?  Yes.  They are supposed to do it correctly.  The question is who is watching to ensure that it is done correctly?

MS. NAKASHIMA:  All workers are covered under California OSHA.  So ‑‑

MR. BLUM:  Who is the contractor?

MS. NAKASHIMA:  They are under contract. 

DR. RABOVSKY:  There is no sense going around it.  We keep talking about this in general very often.  When the workers come out we have small groups of people not protected by unions.  We do not know their documentations.  Even if they are concerned, they may be afraid to say anything.  Just to say that they are covered under law, we know they are covered under law.  A lot of things are covered under law, but we have this big, polluted site out here.  So the point I am trying to get to, as I brought up before in the Toxics Committee summary, is that someone should be checking that the workers and their supervisors are adequately informed and appropriately protected to ensure that the contractor is following that law.

MS. RIDGWAY:  If I understand it, you are asking if there is some kind of oversight to make sure that they are noting the rules that they are supposed to be following.  Is that correct?  

MS. FOWLER:  Typically it is not in our oversight when ‑‑ let me finish.  When it is just like ‑‑ I think the best example I can use is if you hire someone to come in and do pest control on your house, those are licensed individuals.  It is only appropriate for them to wear the appropriate safety equipment and respirators, whatever else is needed for that particular chemical that they are applying.  That's what will happen at the Zeneca site.  It is through the consultant.  We generally do not have any oversight regarding that.  It is outside of our realm.  We have approved that this broadleaf weed needs to be eradicated.  All we do is look at the information and say, "Does this in any way inhibit our future cleanup of the site?"  And it doesn't.  It is outside of our regulatory authority; that is correct. 

MS. PADGETT:  I want to just make a brief comment about that.  And then I know we need to move on.  Two things.  When a contractor like Clark Pest Control comes to my home, I am overseeing what it is they are doing.  So, you know, if someone looks like they are in danger, then I do have some responsibility to address it.  So it isn't just the contractor that is responsible.  I am also responsible as the property owner.  So there is some responsibility by the property owners to ensure the contractor that shows up at this site is following their regulations by law.  

So really, this is, when I am there, going to be called a self‑monitored situation.  By self‑monitored I mean the property owners are self‑monitoring the contractors arriving on site to eradicate these weeds.  I don't know whether that is adequate, but I want to take it from there and go right into what we call ‑‑ I think it is a health and safety plan that is supposed to be passed off to all visitors and contractors who work on the site.  The health and safety plan is written by Levine Fricke, as part of the responsible party's responsibility when overseeing this site, states that all contractors who enter this site are supposed to adhere to the health and safety plan that was written for all activities on the site so that they know where the dangers are.  

This site isn't safe.  There are parts of it that have problems.  That's why the health and safety plan was written.  So it isn't just that they are coming into my backyard.  They are coming onto the toxic site.  The response I think we are looking for from DTSC is that they, DTSC, and the property owners are ensuring that the health and safety plan that was written for the site is, in fact, being adhered to, that the contractors are informed that they are going onto the toxic site, and they are following all of the regulations, the rules set up on their behavior while they are onsite.   

MS. NAKASHIMA:  The people doing the application of herbicide have already been on the site.  They are the people who previously did the planting on the marsh.  They know what is out there.  They have been out there for quite a while.  I would also like to say DTSC does not regulate pesticide use.  There is a different agency that does that. 

DR. ESPOSITO:  In conversation with some people from the Radiological Health Service, I had the impression that none of the information has been transmitted, that the person who indicated there were buried barrels, steel barrels at the Richmond Field Station, was an individual who, 24 hours later after participating in this event, exhibited classic symptoms of radiation poisoning of an exposure of 300 to 600 rads.  Consequently ‑‑ the information that he was told was he was burying Plutonium 239 waste is ijmportant.  

Thehe word "Plutonium 239" has not filtered its way into DTSC's vocabulary.  And I am afraid it is not making its way into the radiological health service vocabulary.  The reason we got excited about that burial site was because of what the individual said was in the barrels.  If we said it was waste material from a picnic, I don't think anybody would have been out there with a magnetometer.  The point is, when you talk about new methodologies going forward, I think it is DTSC's responsibility to say an individual who made this report suffered from radiation sickness.  He thought he was burying Plutonium 239.  Don't confuse it with radon.  Thank you.

MR. ROBINSON:  I have a quick question.  On Page 2 you state that the responsible parties submitted the first annual monitoring report for East Stege Marsh.  The report describes the results of the monitoring that has been required by the U.S. Army Corps permit.  First of all, can we get a copy of that permit?  That is natural law as opposed to CEQA.  Typically there is some kind of review.  Who reviews that?  Is that the Corps?  Do they have findings they present after?

MS. NAKASHIMA:  I think we talked about that Corps permit a while ago.  I think you brought up that same issue.

MR. ROBINSON:  Is that the same permit?  Do they issue findings?

MS. NAKASHIMA:  They issue the permit.  And there is a biological opinion.

MR. ROBINSON:  When they get the report, do they read the report and issue findings? 

MS. NAKASHIMA:  You mean for this report? 

MR. ROBINSON:  Right.

MS. NAKASHIMA:  I am not sure if they issue findings or not.

MR. ROBINSON:  Could we find that out?

MS. NAKASHIMA:  Yeah.  We can find that out. 

MS. RIDGWAY:  What kind of permit is that? 

MR. ROBINSON:  Army Corps.  I want to just ‑‑ I want to do a process check real quick.  It is ‑‑ my watch says 8:43.  I know we have ‑‑ we still have public comments and committee updates.  So at this point we ‑‑ unfortunately we either go over or we don't have one of those things on the agenda.  So I am going to let one more question be asked.

MS. PADGETT:  It is not a question; it is a resolution. 

MS. RIDGWAY:  We have one more, and we will move on. 

MR. KIM:  I have one question about Richmond Field Station.  I just received the CCO, Current Conditions Report.  Can you tell me how long is the review on that report?  And also a comment on the Current Use Report.  The soil management plan should be coincided with the current condition report, I think.  As I talked to UC before, they don't have a full current condition report for all of the field site.  We need the complete report.  They need to work on soil management.

MS. NAKASHIMA:  The soil management plan is based on the information they have right now.  But, as you know, they need to prepare things to maintain the facility.  So the soil management plan is in the event they do something and they come across, maybe, cinders, what's the plan, what do they need to do, who do they need to notify.

MR. KIM:  Is it possible I could have a copy of the report? 

MS. NAKASHIMA:  Yeah.  It is probably in the Building 102. 

MS. RIDGWAY:  That is the soil management report?  Is that what you are asking for? 

MR. KIM:  Yes.  Soil management plan.

MS. RIDGWAY:  Okay. 

MS. PADGETT:  The last thing I want to say to ‑‑ in response to a question about DTSC's comments on the remedial investigation report being on line, I will look for it tonight on the DTSC Envirostor website.  And I will send out an e‑mail to all of you with the link for the remedial investigation report comments.  I am assuming it is there, and I will link it so everyone will have it.  For those who are not on e‑mail, I will print it out and mail it to Ethel, JoAnn and Simms.  

MS. NAKASHIMA:  If it is not there, I am going to be out of the office tomorrow, but I will put it on Monday. 

MS. PADGETT:  If it is not there tonight, we will get it on Monday, DTSC's response to the remedial investigation report for Lots 1 and 2.  And the UC Richmond Field Station has been terrific about loading up the draft current conditions report for the UC Richmond Field Station.  It is on line, and I sent out an e‑mail earlier this week or late last week that had the link.  It is available also online.  It is about 104 megabytes and it takes a while to download. 

MS. RIDGWAY:  So we are going to wrap up this section and move on very quickly to public comments now.

MR. ROBINSON:  Public comments.  I think we should invite the public. 

MS. BIJAY:  So my name is Claudette Bijay.  And I am with the Union for Clericals at Richmond Field Station and the entire Berkeley campus.  So what is interesting to us is that ‑‑ I really appreciate the concern for worker safety that members of the CAG expressed tonight.  As a union representative we have had meetings with the University.  We have discussed the issue of worker safety, as you can imagine, with the whole context of the problem that we have discussed for the last two years.  

We were assured that there were policies in place to protect the workers who were digging, who were treating cinders, et cetera.  And when we said, "How do the workers know that?"  "Their supervisor checks with the appropriate environmental health and safety department on campus."  What it seems to me is that if an interim soils management plan is just now being put into place, and maybe it didn't exist before, then the so‑called responsible party, namely the University, was not really protecting its workers on the site.  

So I just wanted to bring that to your attention.  When the University told us on March 5th that the report wasn't ready, they didn't tell us when it would be.  We had to find out from members of CAG when it would, in fact, be ready.  So they are not fulfilling their obligation to tell the representatives of the workers what is going on.  

And I can see why David asked for a copy of the interim soils management plan since the University didn't mention to the unions that this was actually being prepared, which, of course, is irrelevant to us who care about worker safety.  I would appreciate it.  This is a suggestion from a member of the public, and also because we represent workers at Richmond Field Station, part of the site.  When we read these Department reports from the DTSC and a paragraph says the responsible party submitted a report done by the responsible parties, for someone to understand this, presumably they go to several other documents to find out who the responsible parties are for this paragraph.  

It's a little hard to understand, as a member of the public.  In other words, you have to become an expert in order to understand what is really being said here.  So if it would be possible, in the paragraph about the railroad, the initials of the railroad are at least mentioned, so something that at least would indicate who was being talked about, I think that would be very helpful.  

And I also want to thank you, Tarnel, for the minutes that she has done, minutes for meetings.  It is a thankless task, and she did this while she did many other things.  And I think she should be commended for the role in the minutes.  

MS. LICHTERMAN:  I second that.  I am Joan Linderman from University of Professional and Technical Employees.  Also we've been involved in a whole union coalition of a number of different unions representing not only clerical and professional workers but also building trades and maintenance workers at Richmond Field Station.  

I wanted to say that we had a site visit there a little over a month ago.  And one of the staff members told me that they had done experiments, Michael, with vaporizing radium.  And he was not at liberty to tell me where, just that he told me what the process was and said that he really could not say any more.  So that has been done out there, and God only knows where or how you are going to find anything.  

MR. MARTIN:  My name is Owen Martin.  I live in Richmond.  One, I came here basically because I always come and ask people not to put housing in this place after it is worked on, some kind of business where people can come home and there won't be any kids there.  Second, I heard people talking about people spraying weeds and not knowing how the people were being treated.  I used to work at Color Spot.  And the sprayers at Color Spot have the gear.  They have supervisors that fill out reports.  And with any business Cal OSHA goes in if there is an injury to someone looking at all of the documentation going backwards.  Maybe Cal OSHA could go in this place and look around.  Okay.  Secondly, Workers' Comp insurance agents usually go in and make sure people are trained so that their liability is reduced.  There is two options, through the Workers' Comp, insurance companies, and see if certain people are trained.  Thank you for your time. 

MS. RIDGWAY:  Thank you.  Any other public comments at this point?  

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Good evening.  I am retired from the Union, and I hear these ladies sit here and say that they are union reps and they can't get in to represent their people.  I find something remiss with that.  That never happened as a Teamster.  I can tell you that.  You can get in and protect your workers.  You can even put them out on strike if their conditions are that things there aren't good for workers.  I wouldn't say that as a union leader, "I can't go and see about my workers."

MS. RIDGWAY:  Thank you.  Okay.  Any other comments?  Okay.  We will move on to any updates.

MR. ROBINSON:  I think the first one would be Support Services Committee, status, computers.  Sherry, do you have a report on that? 

MS. PADGETT:  At the last Community Advisory Group meeting I said that I would take on for 30 days the responsibility of distributing three available computers from the responsible party.  I was successful in distributing one.  I took it over to JoAnn Tillman's home last week.  She has a brand‑new desktop computer with a used terminal.  And she signed the document that says that it is in her home and that she can be reimbursed up to $50 a month for a high‑speed line to connect that computer.  So JoAnn has all the equipment to be on line and up and running with a desktop, brand‑new, still in the box, unopened.  

I have another computer that Cherokee has loaned us.  It is in the file room at my office.  And I tried to ‑‑ I did contact Simms as well as Ethel to distribute those two computers.  And both have said that they would decline the other two computers waiting for a laptop.  I contacted Cherokee, and Cherokee had told us early on that they were trying to repair a laptop that they had in their possession.  We are not sure what the problem was with it.  With laptops, they can be dropped and coffee spilled on them, and you try to fix them.  And so the IT department at Cherokee has been ‑‑ I don't know what they have been doing, ordering parts or figuring out how to repair the laptop they were going to make available for Ethel.  

That laptop will be available, they are hoping, a week from tomorrow, and I will be picking up that laptop and delivering it to Ethel possibly a week from tomorrow.  But there is not available within the Cherokee organization another laptop.  And so what we have is a brand‑new desktop in my file room at my office waiting to be delivered.  And if Simms wants that computer, it is available and ready.  And he can be up on line just immediately just as JoAnn can be.  And Ethel will be whenever we get this laptop delivered.  

So within 30 days, I think I have done as much as I can with regard to getting these computers distributed except that we still have Simms.  And I am hoping that, Simms, you will change your mind and accept the desktop because I just don't see the laptop coming.  So perhaps you will have a change of heart about accepting that last piece of equipment.  So if I ‑‑ that's all I have to say about administrative support. 

MS. RIDGWAY:  Thank you, Sherry.  Anybody else have a comment on that?  Okay.  So my understanding is JoAnn got her desktop.  You have one desktop at your office that could go to someone?

MS. PADGETT:  To Simms. 

MS. RIDGWAY:  Ethel is waiting for the laptop and Cherokee/Simeon is working on that.

MS. PADGETT:  I will pick it up next week. 

MS. RIDGWAY:  Great.  Any other ‑‑ are we doing the other committee update? 

MR. ROBINSON:  I was going to recommend that we table the other ‑‑ I was going to recommend that we table or carry over to the next meeting the other committee updates unless one of the chairpersons from those committees has an important announcement.  Dan?  

MR. SCHWAB:  Well, I would just like to discuss the issue of getting a long‑term facilitator for this group.  First of all, I would like to thank you, Angela, for being here tonight.  She has done a great job.  You really helped us, no joke, but, as you know, part of the resource we have available to us as a result of Cherokee is a longer‑term arrangement for someone to help us facilitate the meetings.  

And Joe and I have taken on trying to locate potential people to do that.  And we are working on setting up a series of potential people, much like Sherry did, with the technical side of it.  Just a brief update on that.  I have a list of people that I have contacted.  It has been really haphazard getting information back and finding people who are willing to work with us, but we are still working on it.  And Joe and I, over the next two weeks or so, are hoping to schedule interviews in a similar manner to the technical group.  And, of course, everyone will be informed of when those interviews are going to be, and they are open meetings.  We would appreciate you being there because the selection of the person that is right for us to do this job is a very important one for our progress, whichever way we go.  So if you have a question or you have a suggestion on someone to recommend, please contact me or Joe Robinson.  Any questions on that?  Right now I am hoping that process will be completed in time for our June meeting.  Angela, I believe you are going to be with us in May, and we've already agreed to that.  And I think it is a good thing.  It gives us a little continuity and also allows us time to go through this process. 

MS. RIDGWAY:  Okay.

MR. ROBINSON:  I have one more comment.  Quick one.  I would like to make the CAG aware that I am going to try to arrange a CAG‑only meeting closed to the public sometime in the near future, I am hoping before the next normal monthly meeting.  I don't know how successful that will be.  I don't know how ‑‑ I would like to involve Angela in that so that we can have in‑depth discussion about what issues simmer below the surface here at the CAG.  And I am going to be working with Dan on that and anyone else who is interested. 

MS. RIDGWAY:  Okay.  So anyone?  So I want to thank you, everybody, for coming here tonight and working very hard.  I know all of you are working very hard on this entire process.  I think the evening went very well.  I want to commend everybody on the hard work that they did tonight.  Usually I would go around the room and say what do you think went well, what do you think needs to change or be improved in the future.  In the interest of time I am not going to do that, but unless anybody has anything that they want to really quickly say about the meeting process itself, how it went...

MR. BLUM:  I think it went great.  Thank you very much. 

MS. RIDGWAY:  And I know it is not perfect, but we work on this over time, and it gets better.

MR. THOMPSON:  I would like for some of these conflicts that we have in here that since you know that it is going to be a lot of discussion on quite a few of them and, you know, in time frame, that you don't have so many on here.  The amount that we have on there we shouldn't have but at least about five at the most.  That is counting the agenda review and four others of importance so that you have plenty of time to discuss them and what have you, and you won't run out of time.  You will probably save some time.  

MR. ROBINSON:  Simms, if I could respond to that.  I put that agenda together.  It reminds me of a quote.  I wrote you a ten‑page paper because I don't have time to write you a five‑page paper.  The next one will be short.  

MR. SCHWAB:  Joe just mentioned to us the idea of our getting together to figure out the best way to go forward with it.  I think it is the perfect topic, what should our agenda look like.  I don't know about you, but sitting through a three‑hour meeting without a break, that is ‑‑ where is the refreshments?  So the idea that Joe mentioned a few minutes ago of getting together in an informal way of talking about what this should be, Joe and I and Whitney talked about doing this.  Please, if you hear from us of a time and place, make every effort to be there. 

MS. RIDGWAY:  I am hoping I will be able to be there.  If it's before the May meeting I will be there to help with that process so we can get the team processes going.  And, again, I appreciate all of your input this evening.  I will step up to work on the agenda for next time.  So I will make sure that I get the right contacts to work with and create that.  And we'll keep in mind having time for discussion.  Thank you all for coming this evening. 
(The meeting was adjourned.)
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7 p.m. Jean Rabovsky, Chairperson, called the meeting to order.

Members present:

Tarnel Abbott, Ethel Dotson, Whitney Dotson, Carolyn Graves, Stephen Linsley, Sherry Padgett, Jean Rabovsky, Joseph Robinson

Guest:

Regina Gilligan 
ADMINISTRATION:

Agenda review: Tarnel said she will have a guest tonight, and requested time to introduce her.

Minutes review:

changes: “ToxCom” Advocacy letter to Barbara Cook will be from CAG executive committee.

motion to accept minutes: (approved unanimously)

Announcement:

Jean announced that she had some news (that she was resigning from both the Toxics Committee, and from the CAG) both effective after the April CAG meeting.

During the month that Jean remains as Chairperson of the Toxics Committee, she will contribute to the review of the Remedial Investigation Report, lot 3, prepare the Toxics Committee Summary for the April CAG meeting and prepare a list of ToxCom documents/letters for the CAG files.

UPDATES:

Technical Support Subcommittee: 
The Committee waited until the “Memorandum of Agreement” (“MOA”) was signed (March 6th) before proceeding to contact the seven firms in the MOA exhibit B for interviews.  Two of the firms declined to be interviewed (CH2M Hill and ENVIRON); the remaining five had interview dates set by the end of that same week; with the interviews completed by March 15th.  All the firms had received an information packet from the Committee prior to their interview; the packet included a letter and a CD with 7 MB of documents (the CCR for lots 1-3, the RI for lots 1-3, sampling plan for lots 1-3, ToxCom comments on the pilot study for Lots 1&2, Jean’s paper on PCBs, and the ToxCom response on the RI for lots 1&2.)

The seven firms were: Bureau Veritas, CH2M Hill, Ecology and Environment, Inc. (E&E), ENVIRON, Iris Environmental, Risk Science Associates, and Treadwell and Rollo. The firms which declined to be interviewed were CH2M Hill, and Iris Environmental.  However one member of Iris Environmental (Adrienne LaPierre), whom the Subcommittee felt was an outstanding Risk Assessment resource, did meet individually with the Subcommittee.  Adrienne has assisted Treadwell and Rollo on projects in the past, and she expressed an interest in working with the CAG via one of the other Technical teams.

The interviews included discussions to determine each firm’s fit with the CAG, their credibility with DTSC, their depth of risk science staff, and checks for conflict of interest.  Based on the interviews, the Subcommittee favors Treadwell and Rollo, with the addition, if possible, of Adrienne from Iris Environmental.  Dr. Alvin Greenberg (of Risk Science) is a strong second; he would hire Qwesta for some work as he doesn’t have the depth of staff needed for a complex site such as Zeneca.

Jean asked about the credentials of the contractor staff.  Joe said Adrienne was topnotch with both good presentation and energy.  He also said Treadwell had a team that could handle a complex site such as Zeneca.

In conducting the interviews, the Subcommittee discovered that the current MOA will not provide enough funds for the selected Technical staff to ramp up quickly on the site history and current status.   The Subcommittee is going to propose that the MOA be amended to allow an upfront $50K budget or 250 hours for the first 60 days of work by the Technical contractors; after that time the MOA budget will revert to the original $12K/month.  Sherry is hopeful that both DTSC and the Responsible Parties will agree to this, and that Sanjay and Peter will continue to donate time to make the amendments to the MOA; a note is ready to go to DTSC and Doug Mosteller regarding this proposed amendment to the MOA.

The contractors will be expected to attend each CAG meeting in some form (i.e., perhaps limited staff would attend), however as the contractors would charge by the hour for this task and our current monthly CAG meetings do not always go smoothly or as scheduled, the Subcommittee feels cost could be an issue.

Union of Concerned Scientists: 

Jean had a phone conversation with the UCS office in Washington, D.C; Jean sent them a description of our work via email; a week passed and Jean hadn’t heard anything, so she emailed again for confirmation of receipt of the email.  She resent the email with a correction (to exclude pharmaceuticals from the list of toxics), but still has not heard a response.

CA Geographic Society: 

A friend of Jean’s had originally suggested that we contact the CGS for help with the history of the site.  Jean drafted a description of the site information but intervening circumstances prevented this avenue of contact with CGS.  Now that Jean is resigning from the CAG, Aria has agreed to take on this task and contact the CGS.  She will use the revised site description with pharmaceuticals excluded from the list of toxics.  The description is likely to be sent to all members of the CGS, so the wording must take that into account.

BYLAWS CHANGES:

There had been earlier attempts to amend the Bylaws due to concern that the original bylaws regarding the ToxCom range of duties were more limited than was in practice; however the Bylaws Committee had requested that amendments be done later.  Jean has now reissued the request to Dan Schwab, and this needs to be followed through with.  Pablo (a Bylaw Committee member) has asked for bylaw suggestions.   

Jean also proposed that the Toxics Committee be renamed to the “Committee on Toxics” so as to prevent speakers from misaddressing the Committee as the “Toxic Committee.”  (The bylaws refer to the “Toxics Committee”, so a name change should be considered now, as we are suggesting changes to the bylaws.)  Tarnel motioned that we suggest these changes to the Bylaws Committee; Sherry suggested an amended motion to do so with the exception of the name change.  Joe seconded the amended motion; the motion passed.   
REMEDIAL INVESTIGATION REPORT:

Lot 3: Steve summarized the RI review to date, and reiterated that our comment period has been extended to March 30 per DTSC, with ToxCom comments due to Steve by March 26.  Steve continued that Michael’s comments are indicated by initials ME, Sherry’s by SP, Steve’s by SL.  He added that we should let him know of things to add or change.  Steve wants to repeat comments from Lots 1 and 2 where applicable.  Jean wants to add PCB information (especially regarding PCBs in the soil) to the RI report comments. She would also like to comment on human health assessment contracts, arsenic, pathways, among others.

Sherry mentioned that one of the contractors (that ToxCom had interviewed) described the approach of the Responsible Party to this site as “very piecemeal”; items that support this description include the fact the Final CCR is still undelivered, but steps dependent upon its conclusions seem to be well underway per published reports on the DTSC website.  There have been partial responses to questions on the original CCR, but other CCR questions remain unanswered.  The Responsible Party then said these concerns would be addressed in the RI reports.  But the delivered RI reports do not do so.  The EKI update posted on 3/14/07 says the CCR issues will now be addressed “separately.”

Carolyn asked if the CAG continues to be minimized in this remedial process what can we do to 
change that, specifically to apply pressure/get additional support to DTSC?  Discussion of several options including presentation of situation to State Assemblywoman Loni Hancock, and State Senator Don Perata, press conferences (but what if no one comes?), and a Public Hearing.  Ethel mentioned that Veritas mentioned during their interview a (California?) precedent where a community affected by 
a poorly-done cleanup used a lawsuit to force a do-over cleanup to fix the problems.  Sherry spoke of hiring a contractor, and then going to our legislators with a summary to date of the cooperation/problems with the process and participants.

NEW ITEM:

Tarnel introduced her guest, Regina Gilligan who is working on the “Touchable Stories” art project, which is an oral history and art project about Richmond.  Regina and Tarnel are working on the theme of the toxic legacy of Richmond, an alternative vision and the honoring of some environmental heroes and heroines.   Regina has used portraiture in her previous work.  Regina said she would be doing sketches during our meeting and that she would like to take photos of each of us after our meeting, with our permission.
PROCESS:

CAG vs. ToxCom issues (e.g., CalEPA grant proposal)

Jean initiated a discussion that subcommittee and individual CAG members need to be careful to address CAG issues to all appropriate CAG members, and to use U.S. Postal mailings as needed to ensure that all appropriate CAG members are kept up to date on items under discussion outside of CAG meetings. 
Some specifics about the CalEPA grant were discussed (submissions are due May 16th), but conversation was redirected back to the general concern regarding internal CAG communication.

It was commented by several members that the soon-to-be-distributed computers should make timely internal CAG communication much easier and minimize the need for U.S. Postal mailings.  Also mentioned was that a number of CAG documents, etc. are on Soula’s blog, but that Soula is currently limited in time/energy to add new items.  So a CAG website might serve as a good location to store and disseminate CAG related documents.

Communication with DTSC

Jean described her concern that the DTSC staff could be confused by multiple people contacting DTSC on CAG matters, especially due to the recent downsizing of DTSC staff.  The possibility of multiple CAG members contacting various DTSC staff on the same issues was also mentioned.  She requested that any phone conversations be followed up by a confirmation/summary email to all relevant (CAG/ToxCom) members documenting the gist of the conversation.  She asked that CAG subcommittee items be directed to DTSC through the respective subcommittee Chair, and that general CAG items be directed through the CAG executive committee and Chair.

Communication with Responsible Party

Similar to the above concern, Jean feels direct communication between the CAG/ToxCom and the Responsible Party is not in the best interests of the CAG and/or the ToxCom.  She felt that it would be best if the CAG used DTSC as the middleperson in communicating to/from the Responsible Party.  If the DTSC seems to be failing in this role, then the CAG needs to document examples to our legislators and lobby for a correction to the situation.  Sherry mentioned that the DTSC statement regarding lessening CAG support could be interpreted as a “cry for help” to the CAG for assistance in restoring/raising DTSC funding. 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 9:15 p.m.

NEXT MEETING:
The next regularly scheduled ToxCom meeting is Thursday, April 19, 2007.
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